ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COWM TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
February 25, 2004
7:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve M ke Hawker, Chair
Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch, Vice Chair
Representative Vic Kohring

Representati ve Dan Ogg

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Peggy W1 son

Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representative Carl Mses

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 493

"An Act relating to adoption and revision of a long-term fiscal
plan for the State of Al aska.”

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 493

SHORT TI TLE: LONG TERM FI SCAL PLAN
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HARRI S

02/ 16/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H) WM FI N
02/ 25/ 04 (H WeM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

W TNESS REGQ STER
DAVI D TEAL, Director

Legi sl ative Finance Division
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -1- February 25, 2004



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments during the discussion of
HB 493 and answered questi ons.

DAN DI CKI NSON, Director

Tax Division

Departnent of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments during the discussion of
HB 493 and answered questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-7, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR M KE HAWKER cal |l ed the House Special Conmttee on Ways and
Means neeting to order at 7:00 a.m Representati ves Hawker,
Samuel s, Kohring, Wyhrauch, WIson, Guenberg, Mdses, and Ogg
were present at the call to order. Representati ve Rokeberg
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 493- LONG TERM FI SCAL PLAN

Number 0217

CHAI R HAWKER announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 493, "An Act relating to adoption and revision of
a long-termfiscal plan for the State of Al aska."

CHAIR HAWKER |isted the docunents in the conmttee nenbers'
packets. He spoke of a bar chart that showed three different
scenari os projected |ast year by the Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
conparing dividend splits of [percent of market value] (POW)
proceeds and the resulting consequence on the constitutional
budget reserve fund (CBRF) balance. He said the graph depicting
t he budget at $7.5 billion "in the hole" shows the reason behind
needing a long-termfiscal plan.

Number 0334
REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if the chart reflected any growth
in the size of the CBRF, even if there is no additional

appropriation and there are increases only through investnent
i ncone.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 2- February 25, 2004



CHAI R HAWKER sai d yes, there would be no additional investnents.
"The charts indicate a consistent budget deficit for the next
few years without material additional revenues,"” he added.

Number 0408

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked if it was possible to put nore charts
together to have a realistic picture that shows if governnent is
kept at the size it is right now, what the cost would be
[through FY 2012].

CHAI R HAWKER said that the commttee is headed in the direction
of Representative QOgg's suggestion. He noted that the second
chart showed a 2 percent increase.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH r el at ed:

The out years, say 2010, when the anount of the CBRF
falls below zero, realistically, it wouldn't show that
sort of significant decline. What that's trying to
reflect is the anount of noney we would have to obtain
from other sources, bonding, or taxes, or other
revenues, in order to fill that margin between the
negative and the zero.

CHAI R HAVWKER agr eed. "W are not constitutionally allowed to
deficit spend,” he said. He noted that when Representative
Weyhrauch cross-referenced the year 2010, that was presun ng
$300 million a year in additional revenues. He enphasi zed t hat
[the charts] were benchmark nodels fromlast year's files.

CHAI R HAWKER announced the arrival of Representatives G uenberg
and Seat on.

Nunmber 0616

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt HB 493 for discussion
pur poses.

CHAIR HAWKER noted Version 23-LS1765\D [the original bill] was
before the committee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, speaking as cosponsor, introduced HB
493 as a vehicle requiring the state to adopt, now, and in the
future, a long-term nediumrange fiscal plan. He said it is a
sinple bill, favored by a |large nunber of people, that provides
a benchmark from which to work, a goal for which to strive, and

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3- February 25, 2004



a series of road marks, mssions, and neasures in the fiscal
ar ea. He expressed surprise that there is no statutory
requirenent, already, to have a fiscal plan. He noted that
future legislation can't be bound, but could be directed to
[ have a fiscal plan].

Number 0901

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG expl ained that Section 1 adds
provisions in the uncodified |aw because it is the statenent of
the current situation. The codified laws are titled "tenporary
and special acts,"” he noted. [ Reading through Section 1], he
pointed out on page 1, the disparity noted in paragraphs (1),
(2), and (3). He said that paragraph (3) doesn't provide the
only reason [to develop a fiscal plan], but does point out the

urgency. I n paragraph (4) he enphasized the words "bal ance"” and
"properly planned."” He continued to read paragraph (5), and
then added that a variety of tools wll be needed to achieve a

fiscal plan. He said the key in paragraph (5) is that the
[fiscal] plan is "balanced and fair to all Al askans."”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained that Section 2 is a new

section, entitled "Long-term fiscal plan." He said this public
finance section would add a new provision to the Executive
Budget Act, imrediately after the statenment of policy. He read
subsection (a) and opined it was the nost inportant part of the
bill. He noted that five years seens |like a reasonable period
of time.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG read [Section 2, subsection (b)] and
pointed out five points the l|egislative plan should consider.
He defined "real economc growh" [in paragraph (1)] as a
heal t hy, growi ng econony that provides business opportunities,
jobs, and the neans to support famlies and the necessary state
servi ces. He said "maintains a high quality of life" 1is
probably the nost inportant [point]. He said he did not intend
environnental issues to be overl ooked, but that the enphasis is

on devel opi ng natural resources. He noted paragraph (2) sounds
like the mssion of the House Special Committee on Ways and
Means. Representative G uenberg explained that in paragraph

(4), specific neans to raise revenues were not noted and were
purposely left for the legislature to decide. The |anguage [in
paragraph (5)] "prudent mninmm balance in the fund" canme from
t he Fairbanks Conference [Conference of Al askans, February 10-
12, 2004], he concl uded.

Number 1702

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- February 25, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE OGG wondered if the intent of the bill inplies
that [the state] does not have a balanced budget and is not
living within its neans.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that [the state] has a bal anced
budget in the sense that it is able to fund the appropriations
each year, but, in the sense that noney has to be drawn fromthe
savi ngs account, there is not a long-term bal ance because [that
noney] is going to run out.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG responded that in the last 10 years the
| egi slature has made fairly frugal decisions with the incom ng
revenues, and has mnade choices about what to do wth those
revenues. Over this period of time, there has always been a
bal anced budget and excess revenues, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said the bill is intended to provide
for a future set of goals.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked if that is the case, what would change
at this tine.

Number 1850

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied that when he |ooks at whether
the budget is balanced, "I'mlooking at it, not just whether we
have the ability to neet the bills in the current year, but what
we're doing in the sense of providing for the future.” He
called the current situation a "period of transition"; cutting
state services and reducing state spending which can't be done
indefinitely. He said that Alaska has been traditionally
dependant on resources, nost notably oil, with a finite life.
He stressed that, for stability, a long-term fiscal plan is
needed.

Number 2009

REPRESENTATI VE OGG nmai ntai ned that there was a plan, |ong before
he was elected, which has allowed [the state] to cone quite a
ways. He said the noney has been used in a variety of ways: for
a permanent fund, inflation-proofing $7 billion over a period of
time, and for excess earnings available for the general fund.
He said the budget is balanced, but that [the state] is | ooking
dowmn the road. He asked Representative Guenberg what he
t hought shoul d be changed.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 5- February 25, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested producing a publicly debated
plan so people in the state, and elsewhere, "would know where
we' re going and how we're going to get there.”

Number 2210

CHAI R HAWKER asked Representative G uenberg what his vision is
for the work product.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answered it could be any one of severa
things: a tenporary or special act that would be in effect for
five years, sonething permanent and anended as tinme went on, or
a concurrent resolution. He said he has left it intentionally
di scretionary in the |egislature. He added that Congress, each
year, has an ommibus resolution that is passed early in the
session, the anount [of noney] is generally known, and then
i ndi vi dual appropriation bills are worked on.

CHAIR HAWKER asked if Representative Guenberg's vision
interrelated to the mssions and neasures statutes, and if that
m ght be the place to integrate it.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER answered that is possible, but the bill is
nore of an aspirational statement for the budgeting process. He
said the missions and neasures legislation reach down to the
i ndi vidual departnents, but [HB 493] provides a nacro approach

He agreed that the two go together.

Nunber 2524

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS referred to the findings in [Section 1]
and said they suggest a significant disparity between avail able
revenues. He stated that is incorrect because the |egislature
could appropriate the earnings of the permanent fund and there
woul d be plenty of noney. He asked if Representative G uenberg
is entertaining corrections or anmendnents.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he has no problem [accepting
anendnents] because [the bill] is sinple a vehicle for [the
| egi sl ature] to make policy statenents. He said the intent is
to keep [the bill] fairly neutral and broad-brushed so it does
not become an advocacy st atenent.

Number 2704

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she is trying to envision what kind
of process this bill would involve. She indicated that in other

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- February 25, 2004



states there are two strong standing commttees, one that would
do the appropriating, and the other that would |ook at the
financial status of the state. She said in Alaska there is a
strong finance committee that decides how the noney wll be
spent . There is not a standing comrittee that |ooks at the
finances of the state, the incone, and nakes adjustnent
deci si ons. She asked Representative Guenberg if he is
intending to nake a change in the structure of the way things
are currently run.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said absolutely, and that he is glad
Representative WIson asked the question. He posited that the
creation of the [House Special Commttee on Ways and Means] is
an extrenely inportant step, and that there needs to be a
standi ng ways and neans conmttee to |ook at planning and ways
to raise revenue. He said that over 30 states have such
commttees. He remarked that he has plans to draft a resolution
whi ch ensures continuance of the current conmttee as well as a
second standi ng ways and neans committee.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON t hanked Representative Guenberg for his
answer and stated that she has strong feeling about the issue.

Number 3033

REPRESENTATI VE OGG referred to page 2, line 11, and asked what
the intention of "the nmeans" is, and how it differs from the
powers the |l egislature presently has.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG replied that it is wthin the
| egi slature's powers and does not intend to give the |legislature
new powers. He said "the neans" is policy, suggestions,
| egi sl ation, appropriations, or anything that would assist the
economy.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG paraphrased, "the plan nust include the
followng: the neans.” He said his understanding of the neans
is "the authority" or "the power." He asked for further
clarification.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG replied that he is leaving [the
wording] intentionally vague. [ The Ilegislature] can pass
st at ut es, appropri ations, t axi ng | egi sl ati on, interstate
contracts, or any other traditional |egislative tools, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG responded that he heard Representative
G uenberg saying something different than his own understanding

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- February 25, 2004



of "the nmeans.” He said the legislature already has the power
or the neans. He said he heard Representative G uenberg say
[the | egislature should] go one step farther and "identify those
tools and focus them on fostering a stable econony that
encourages econonmic growh." He asked if the plan was to have
the legislature address funds or direction to agencies to
acconplish these goals.

Number 3354

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that mght be one way, but it is
not only "direction to agencies." For exanple, it could be
taxes or permanent fund dividends, which deal directly with the
peopl e thensel ves. He said it could also be a joint resolution
or a request to Congress - anything that m ght be appropriate at
the tine.

CHAI R HAWKER suggested the word "neans" mght be replaced with
the word "ways."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d absolutely, he has no problem wth
any of the suggestions.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG agreed with Representative Hawker.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked for clarity on line 17, paragraph (3),

where it says [paraphrasing], "policies that ©protect the
princi pal of the Permanent Fund while using the earnings.” He
remarked that there presently is a nmechanismin place that does
exactly that. He requested a concrete explanation of what

[those |ines] nean.
Number 3611

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied that these are the issues that
the | egislature should continue to exam ne. He did not nmean to
say, in every case, that the legislature's not doing them now.
He said he is suggesting a formal and continuing process, not
just an ad hoc process. He added he is not saying there has to
be changes in any given exanple, or in the collective process.

REPRESENTATIVE OGG said he didn't find nuch "concrete" in

Representative Guenberg's answer, and remarked that the
commttee has been having this kind of discussion for the past
year and a half. He said he didn't want to hear, "W have to

keep working on that issue."

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- February 25, 2004



Nunber 3707

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded, "That is the essence of the
purpose of the bill." He said Representative WIson pointed out
one aspect of the bill, that there needs to be a commttee
structure that allows and encourages [work] to be done as part
of the fiscal policy basis, the revenue raising basis, and
| ooking at ways to stabilize and grow the state. He said the
bill is not attenpting to point a finger to say the |legislature
is doing things wong at the present tine, it is to ensure that
the process continues in an established framework on a regular
basis. He opined that subsection (a), page 2, lines 7-9, is the
heart of the bill

CHAIR HAWKER clarified procedures for the remainder of the
nmeet i ng.

Number 3905

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the biggest question mark in the
budget is the price of oil. He said he is trying to figure out
how "fuzzier and fuzzier projections going out year after year
for a 5-year oil projection gets us to a nore finite fiscal
pl an. "

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied that the 5-year figure is only
a suggestion, and he isn't wedded to it. He stated his own
views on oil fluctuations and suggested nore planni ng be done.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the extrene fluctuations in
oil price and said the range of the 5-year plan cannot be
nebul ous.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG agreed and |isted other variables that
could affect the plan.

CHAI R HAWKER pointed out that the next two speakers would be
tal ki ng about those vari abl es.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG t hanked t he comm ttee for t he
di scussion of the bill

Nunmber 4444
DAVID TEAL, Director, Legislative Finance Division, said that

[revenue projection] nodels such as those from the Pernmanent
Fund Division Departnment (PFDD), DOR, and Legislative Finance

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 9- February 25, 2004



Division, typically hold expenditures constant because they are
hard to predict. He noted that there were unavoidable
expenditures such as Public Enployees' Retirenment System (PERS)
and Teachers' Retirenment System (TRS) cost increases at roughly

$34 mllion a year in general funds. He said such an increase
was not a one-tinme occurrence, but occurs this year and for the
next two years. After that the increase stops, but the

expenditure stays, he added.

CHAI R HAWKER surmised that in three years it is a $100 mllion
i ncrease that year

MR. TEAL said yes, the increase remains fromthen on.
Nunmber 4646

MR. TEAL explained that Medicaid is increasing, nationw de,
approxi mately 15 percent per year. He said it was difficult to
change how nuch the state spends on Medicaid, but the state has
tried to contain costs and has |lower rates than sone states. He
said Al aska can expect increases in the cost of Mdicaid if it
follows the national average, which would nean about $40 nmillion
to $50 million nore a year.

CHAI R HAWKER r emar ked, "That's general funds [increase]."

MR. TEAL replied yes, but even if [the state] was lucky to hold
the increase to one-third of the nationwide increase in
Medicaid, it would still nean in excess of $20 million a year in
added costs.

TAPE 04-7, SIDE B
Number 4618

MR. TEAL discussed education funding and said it is a question
of what [the legislature] wants to spend. It is known that PERS
and TRS [increases] have affected education very strongly this
year in the form of teacher layoffs. The school districts' cost
increase is expected to be 5 percent over the next four years in
a row. That would be about $34-5 million, annually, up to $100

mllion in three years, which remains fromthen on
Nunber 4509
MR. TEAL explained that the cost for university spending, |ike

education, asks the question, "How much do you want to spend?"

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -10- February 25, 2004



The university would |ike an increase of $10-20 million to their
budget .

MR. TEAL indicated that, "Those were the main drivers,"” and
woul d increase [budget spending] to $300 million over where it
IS Nnow. He enphasi zed that [the expenses nentioned so far] do
not address the non-forrmula portion of the budget, which is

approximately $1 billion in general funds. He said to keep up
with inflation, "You're 1looking at another $20-$40 mllion
annual ly. "

Nunmber 4406

MR. TEAL cauti oned:

When you | ook at these graphs of the CBR end-of-year
bal ance, and you see that even with POW in place and
the several-hundred mllion dollars a year that it
woul d generate for state governnment, assum ng that we
got a 40 or 50 or 60 percent split, and built into
this thing is a $300-mllion tax of sone sort, whether
it is sales or incone or any other source of revenue -
it doesn't nake any difference - there's $300 mllion
worth of revenue built into this chart, and there is
no spending increase built into this chart. You can
see that if you want to build in a spending increase,
call it $300 mllion, by 2008, and you take away the
$300 million in tax revenue that we haven't achieved,
you can see that that surplus is gone.

MR. TEAL pointed out that in 2006 [in the 2003 hearings
docunent], the bars are close together, but they rapidly spread
apart. Change is based only on the dividend split and nakes it
difficult to see what the fiscal gap is. He enphasized the
di fferences between the various dividend splits. That makes it
difficult to add $300 million of additional spending to this
chart, he added.

Number 4131

MR. TEAL said the Legislative Finance Division graph takes the
revenue forecast and the flat budget and shows what the fiscal
gap is in each of those years. He noted by 2006 there would be
an $800 mllion fiscal gap, wthout the approximately $300
mllion just nentioned in "unavoidable increases." That cones
to a $1 billion fiscal gap by 2008. The graphs and nodel s

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -11- February 25, 2004



reviewed typically look at flat expenditures and he does not see
them as being flat, he concl uded.

Nunber 4012

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked how long it would take to get a tax
in place and get the revenues back.

MR. TEAL answered that is a question for [DOR], but he guessed
one and a half years.

Number 3929

CHAI R HAWKER nentioned that the first statutory mission in the
bill that created the [House Special Commttee on Ways and
Means,] charged the commttee with controlling state spending
He asked M. Teal to reenphasize the inevitability of the
commtted obligations which would increase state spending. He
asked what it would require, in M. Teal's opinion, to achieve a
| evel budget.

MR. TEAL replied that it is a judgnent call. He rel ated:
The sinple way to do it is to look at inflation alone
because then you could say, well, we just keep up with
inflation. Doing that is sonething we haven't done in
educati on. Medicaid, of course, is a different
f or mul a. It doesn't depend on inflation. There are
parts of the budget that wuld be affected by
inflation, and parts that wouldn't be. | think that's
it's safe to say that approximately $1 billion would
be directly affected by inflation. If inflation's 3
percent a year, that's $60 mllion a year in what you
m ght call, unavoi dabl e.

Certainly the PERS/ TRS cost increases, which are the
major drivers for the next several years, are

unavoi dable. This year the state - of the $34 mllion
- funded approximately $20 mllion. To say they're
unavoi dable is not exactly true, but | don't know how
| ong state agencies can continue to avoid a 5 percent
increase in personal services. The alternative, of
course, is that, say in three years, we've got a 15-20
percent increase in personal service costs. You can
| ook at that as, you either reduce personal services
expendi tures sone ot her way, t hr ough uni on
negotiations, or you have fewer people working. In

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -12- February 25, 2004



order to absorb this 20 percent increase in cost,
you're talking about laying off one out of five
people. So, | don't see how you can avoid that.

You can do some things legislatively to affect your
PERS/ TRS increases and that nay reduce them to -
i nstead of 23 percent - to 17 or 15 percent. But, the

way the PERS increases work ... it's going to be 5
percent this year, 5 percent next year, and probably 5
percent the following year .... The actuaries have

determined that we're horribly under funded in PERS
and we should have a 15-20 percent increase in cost,
but we're limted to a 5 percent increase per year.

If you nmanage to reduce the total cost, you will still
be facing 5 percent increase for the next several
years.

Number 3520

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked, whatever fix is in place for this
year's [cost increase], if next year [the legislature] would
have to find a way to address this year's cost as well as an
addi tional 5 percent.

MR. TEAL said no, it is 5 percent in a year, which is really one

out of 20. In TRS, for exanple, it would be four years of 5
percent increases, or 20 percent, or one out of every 5
teachers. In any one year it is one out of 20.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said that is what she neant.

MR. TEAL explained that Medicaid is not a contractual increase,
but a formula. He said the regulations are not in place to save
noney. Al of the noney the Departnment of Health and Soci al
Servi ces has saved by having a net zero supplenental is going to
Medi cai d. He said the bottomline is, "I don't see how you're
going to avoid approximately $300 million in increases in the
next three-to-four years."”™ He added that that does not include
capital costs; $70 mllion to $100 mllion in deferred
mai nt enance.

Number 3205
REPRESENTATI VE OGG [l ooking at the bar graph from Legislative

Fi nance] asked what would be the nunber added to the bottom of
the bar graph for years 2005-2008.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -13- February 25, 2004



CHAI R HAVWKER requested that M. Teal provide that information at
a | ater date.

MR. TEAL replied that the [2005 budget] is pretty accurate
because it is based on the governor's budget and there are no
new revenues built in.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked if education is included.

MR. TEAL said it includes the PERS cost, but not bills that
woul d gi ve addi ti onal f unds to school districts or
muni ci palities. It also assunes that the $98 mllion to $100
mllion in revenue that the governor expects, has not passed.
"The governor shows $400 million as the projected fiscal gap
and [Legislative Finance] shows $565 [million]. He expl ai ned
that increases in funding for school districts have not been
included [in the 2005] budget, and he has heard that expense nay
be up to $80 mllion. He said if PERS/ TRS costs were to be
i ncluded, the budget could go up by $100 million [in 2005]. In
2006 and in 2007 there would be another [$100 million] added on,
he projected. At that point there would no |onger be increases
in PERS/TRS costs, but there would be $100 mllion to $150
mllion annually for inflation and for Medicaid, he concl uded.

Number 2822

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said his tallies add up to $100 mllion
for 2005, and asked if that amunt should be added to $565
mllion.

MR. TEAL replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG continued to figure the costs in 2006
and extended them out to an excess of $400 million on top of the
structural gap. He concluded it is |ike adding roughly $130
mllion to every nunber. He asked for a one-page projection of
hi gh/low ranges for a 10-year forecast. He remarked that the
nunbers M. Teal is talking about are fromthe real world and no
one has faced up to them yet. He concluded that trying to get
accurate projections based on the real world is what the
commttee is trying to do.

CHAI R HAWKER responded, "That absolutely pins the tail on this
donkey." He thanked M. Teal for his testinony.

Nunber 2430

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -14- February 25, 2004



DAN DI CKINSON, Director, Tax Division, Departnent of Revenue
(DOR), presented information from a packet about oil production
in Al aska broken down by the fields involved. He said that
today half the nunber of barrels are being punped as in 1988
Prudhoe Bay is only producing one-quarter today of what it
produced in 1988, he added. None of the new fields are going to
conpare to what happens when a mature field |ike Prudhoe Bay
declines at 8 percent a year.

MR. DI CKI NSON expl ai ned how page 2 overlays price on volune and
tells how much oil revenue the state took in. He said that when
the CBRF was passed in 1990, the peaks were chopped off and the
volatility was snoothed out. The nost that was put back into
the CBRF was $17 nmillion. He pointed out that the "cash cow, "
Prudhoe Bay, is not going to play the sanme role that it has
pl ayed in the past.

Nunmber 2044
CHAI R HAVWKER poi nted out that the jagged line on the left side
of the page, the "Actual," snoothes out on the "Projected” half
of the page.

MR DICKINSON said it was worth rem nding everyone that the
proj ected side represents the average.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested gas revenues be factored in.

MR. DICKINSON noted that page 14 of the packet addresses
possi ble increases from future oil and gas exploration. He said
the starting date may nove to the right.

Nunmber 1826

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out that on the last chart [page
14] even the best-case scenario only shows about $1.9 mllion
[ of possible increases in revenue]. He said that still |eaves
[the state] short of paying the [fiscal] gap in 2016. He
characterized that as "scary."

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON characterized it as "a little terrifying.”
Nunber 1715

MR. DI CKI NSON predicted that gas revenues wll be nore volatile
than oil revenues. It is easy to conceive of a gas price |ower

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -15- February 25, 2004



than the tariff, he said, or the gas price could be three tines
the tariff, making for hugely volatile revenues.

MR. DICKINSON referred to [page 3] and showed where the CBRF
woul d eventually close out to zero. He explained that page 4
shows the exhaustion of the CBRF as early as Decenber 2005 and
as late as May 2012. He noted that predictions for the CBRF to
run out by now were wong because the annual state budget has
decreased, and the $18 range in state spending is snoothing
things out. Spending has gone down, he said.

Number 1303

CHAIR HAWKER asked if there is inflation-adjusted, per-capita
general fund spending in this state, which he pointed out
"today, in fact, is less than in 1975, when we started the
pi peline."

MR. DI CKI NSON suggested people |look at the Legislative Finance
website for nore information. He continued to explain that page
6 plots two trends from the last 15 years: oil production
decreasing, and oil prices increasing. He said, previously, his
departnment was under forecasting the price rise and the anount
of revenue. The gross value of those two itens is roughly the
sanme, he added. He said people don't believe this trend wll
continue and that there wll be a regression.

Number 0955

MR. DI CKINSON tal ked about the nunbers on page 8 which | ook at
the big picture from 2004-2020. There are two assunptions nade

here: oil is at $22 a barrel and there are no extraordinary
resource devel opnents. He maintained that in the future there
wi | | be no new extraordinary resource developnents. He
continued to explain that there would be a $1 billion deficit

over the next 15-year period.

Number 0826

CHAI R HAWKER asked if that is a $22-a-barrel projection.

MR. DI CKI NSON responded, "At an average." He referred to page 9
to show how $1 billion could be raised. He said any fiscal too
could be nocked, so he used five of the nbst conmmonly nentioned

revenue tools to see what kind of effect they could have wth
m ni mal damage. He opined that an income tax w thhol ding could

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -16- February 25, 2004



be inplenmented in six nonths, but that a sales tax would take a
little | onger.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said, "You probably could get sonething in
place in six nonths, but before we get a full year of revenues,
it would be a year and a half total, then.™

MR. DI CKINSON replied that his departnent would start on January
1 of the next year, which would produce half of the revenues in
that first fiscal year.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said it would take a while to be reflected
in the budget. She asked what year that woul d happen.

MR. DICKINSON said he believes it wuld be 2006, if the
| egi slature were to act now. He said the CBRF could help ease

the transition. He discussed an inconme tax; 1.5 percent flat
tax of the adjusted gross incone (AGd) as found on page 10 of
the packet. He described how that would work, reading from page

10. People with an Ad of nore that $100,000 would carry 33
percent of the tax.

Nunber 0244

CHAI R HAWKER asked M. Dickinson if he has the ability to cone
up with the sanme sort of high-level analysis on taxable incone
as opposed to tax liability or AQ.

MR. DI CKI NSON replied yes. He said that Mke WIlianms [Revenue
Audi tor, Tax Division, Department of Revenue, Anchorage, Al aska]
could better answer that question because he has a nore
sophi sticated nodel. He noted that the information [on page 10]
is based on 2002 data, which he continued to explain. He said
there are many different ways to generate the $200 mllion.

CHAI R HAWKER asked what percent of Alaskan federal taxpayers
have an AG over $100, 000.

MR. DI CKI NSON sai d about 10 percent.

Number 0016

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the cap tax liability at the anount
of dividend was very simlar to former-CGovernor Jay Hanmond' s

fal |l back pl an. He said it looks like the tax falls less on the
hi gher i nconme people than the | ower inconme people.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -17- February 25, 2004



TAPE 04-8, SIDE A
Number 0030

MR. DICKINSON replied that once a person reaches a ceiling, he
or she is "capped out."

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked M. Dickinson what he perceives as
t he anount of the dividend.

MR DI CKINSON said a flat $1000.
Number 0100

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what percentage of Al askan's have
i ncomes over $100, 000.

MR. DI CKINSON said he thinks 10 percent have AG greater than
$100, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for the rationale on the $650
property tax <credit and if that information is readily
avai |l abl e.

MR. DI CKI NSON expl ained that the anount is "a backed into nunber
based on what it would take if there was a 3 percent AG and we
wanted to raise $200 mllion." He suggested Mke WIlians could
provi de nore information about it.

Number 0235

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked about personal property taxes and
said they conplicate matters.

MR. DI CKINSON said his departnent uses a docunent called Taxabl e
Al aska from Departnment of Community & Economic Devel opnment to
make sone assunptions to carry those nunber as a credit against
the incone tax nunbers.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if someone's incone |level has to be
$600 before needing to file for federal incone tax.

MR. DI CKI NSON said he believes that is correct.
REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked if it is a double deduction
Property owners would be able to deduct their property tax

twice, once at the federal level and once at the state |evel
she sai d.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 18- February 25, 2004



MR. DI CKI NSON expl ained that the property owner would be able to
deduct [property tax] so it would lower the tax that they owed,
and then they would be eligible for a credit against that
[ anount ] .

Nunmber 0453

MR. DI CKINSON continued to explain the packet. Page 11 shows
how $200 mllion in sales tax could be rai sed, he said.

CHAI R HAVWKER of fered, "Sales and use [tax]."

MR. DI CKINSON said yes, sales and use, and explained that the
tax would becone an 1.8 percent add-on to local taxes in
communities where they already exist and a stand-alone in
comunities where there is not already a sales and use tax. He
said if food and nost services are excluded, the tax rate would

raise to 3 percent. He said it would be inportant to create a
single adm nistrative entity, not a state organi zation, that had
both state and |ocal representation. He said it was inportant

to neet the criteria specified in a streamined sales tax
project which would include collecting tax on Internet and nail
order sal es. He opined that a 1.8 percent addition to the
existing sales tax in comunities would not be a huge
di stortion, as conpared to higher rates.

Number 0700

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether Congress had restrictions
on states' collecting sales tax on Internet retail sales.

MR. DICKINSON said the words "could nove towards,” indicate
steps need to be taken. Currently, taxing the actual Internet
service itself is prohibited. "If the entity you're buying from
has nexus in your state, you can require that they collect
Internet sales tax." He said it would probably require a
federal |aw change.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG nentioned collecting taxes from web
sal es.

MR. DI CKI NSON cauti oned about separate entity rules.

Nunmber 0908

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -19- February 25, 2004



MR. DI CKI NSON pointed out that page 12 shows how $200 million
could be drawn from the permanent fund. He read from the chart
to show 5 percent of $28 billion is available for distribution

which would equal $1.4 billion, and 14 percent of that would be
$200 million. Page 13 refers to how $200 nillion could be
garnered from corporate incone taxes, he said. He nentioned a
| etter from the governor dated February 2, which laid out
reforms to the net operating loses (NOL) to capital gain and to

federal tax credits. He relayed that, at the nonment, foreign
cruise ships are exenpted from incone tax, but donestic cruise
ships are not. He suggested several ways to collect revenue

froma head tax. Another place changes could be made is to the
oil and gas production taxes, he said. The corporate incone tax
structure could be changed, he opined, as well as S-corps at
corporate and at individual-owner |evels. All  of these are
tools or ways of |ooking at corporate income tax to generate
nore revenue for the state, he concl uded.

Number 1333

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested nore discussions, such as
this one, where nenus of revenue-raising ideas are brought up.
He suggested handouts be made of the various possibilities.

CHAI R HAWKER noted that there were nore such neetings schedul ed.

MR DICKINSON replied that twice a year [DOR] puts out a
forecast wth "think pieces" to lay out nenus such as
Represent ati ve G uenberg suggest ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG  specified he was particularly
interested in the latest information on [page 13].

MR DICKINSON said he would try to provide nore specific
i nformati on about [corporate incone tax].

CHAIR HAWKER said there would be future in-depth hearings on
this topic.

Number 1600

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG wondered if "the 18 states that tax S
corps do a double whammy on those people, and if they have an

income tax and a sales tax." He also comrented on the cruise
ship head tax, saying a new federal l[aw prohibits the noney from
going into the general fund. He wondered if there was any

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 20- February 25, 2004



research on that topic, and if that was why the governor went to
a "bed tax" instead.

MR, DICKINSON said his wunderstanding is that as long as the
spending comng from the general fund directly supports the
cruise ship industry, it's permssible. He said general taxes
can't be applied; only those that go to support [the cruise
ship] industry can be applied. He said, "If you had a broad
sales tax, which included, as a portion of the use tax, the
provision of services on the cruise ship, Departnent of Law
bel i eves that would a belt-and-suspenders approach.”

Number 1747

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said, "I was the author of what's known
as the OSG [Ofice of the Solicitor General] corporate tax case
regarding international trade and its inpacts on internationa
trade and the treaties with over 175 countries that proscribes
or restricts foreign-bottoned vessels, aircraft, rail cars,
satellites, et cetera, from being taxed by the state.” He
requested feedback from M. Dickinson about a separate corporate
tax exception for <cruise ships only, thereby abrogating the
international treaties and incurring the wath of the State
Departnment, Departnment of Conmerce, the United Nations, et
cetera. He asked what inpact a breach of the treaty would nean
[to the state].

Nunmber 1918

MR. DI CKINSON said he could obtain that information. He said
that inposing a [head] tax on passengers may not violate the
treaty.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that nost ports around the world
have a head tax. Even California and Florida don't have
corporate taxes on foreign-bottoned cruise ships because of
treaty inplications, he said. California has its own tax code,
not the United States code.

MR DICKINSON, in answer to Representative Rokeberg's first
gquestion, said all [18 states] have personal inconme tax and
treat [corporations] like C-corps, which are subject to the sane
doubl e t ax.

REPRESENTATI VE  ROKEBERG asked if LLCs [limted liability

conpani es] and sole proprietors are treated the sane way as S
corps [S corporations].

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -21- February 25, 2004



MR. DI CKI NSON responded that the research [in the packet] only
applies to the S-corps. He pointed out that sonme are franchise
taxes and sone are flat taxes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said there was a huge shift in business
away from S-corps and LLCs and he wondered if the other states
were follow ng suit.

MR. DICKINSON said his predictions were based on a 2002 nodel
whi ch has not started nodeling the changes. He said page 14 has
al ready been discussed, but noted that there may be a gap in
time before [future devel opnents] cone in.

Nunber 2246

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to page 4 and asked if a matrix
had been done with a $1 billion floor in the CBRF and what the
dates woul d be.

MR. DICKINSON said he has not done a matrix Ilike that. He
pointed to page 3 and said if $1 billion is subtracted from the
| ast two blue lines, it looks like the "drop-dead” date woul d be
2010.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG requested that M. Dickinson produce a
matrix with a $1 billion floor

MR DI CKI NSON sai d he woul d.
Nunber 2430

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said [the legislature] is looking at
trigger nechanisns and revenue-enhancenent packages and such a
matrix would be hel pful. He asked if the budget projection
chart produced by M. Corbus [Comm ssioner, Departnment of
Revenue] in Fairbanks at the [Conference of Alaskans] could be
obtained. He asked how far out revenue projections go.

MR. DI CKI NSON answered that the [Departnment of Revenue] has many
proj ections, but the one on the web site goes through 2020.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said [that information] is inportant to
future discussions of enshrinenent of the dividend. That debate
needs to be in the context of revenue projections because the
gap is going to be wider and a long-range context wll be
needed, he said.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -22- February 25, 2004



Number 2704
MR DI CKINSON said he could find the nmaterial from Fairbanks.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the nodel [on page 7] is a good
basel i ne.

MR. DICKINSON said it is inportant to focus on what happens wth
grow h and what kind of growth it is.

Nunber 2814

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRING referred to HB 493 and opined that the
contents of the bill are things that can already be done by the
| egislature and do not need to be formalized and put into
st at ut es. He said he appreciated the intent of the bill, but

suggested the sponsors form their own caucus and advocate for
the proposed neasures rather than formalizing it and going
t hrough a tinme-consun ng, expensive process.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG spoke about the issue of expected future
deficits and the fear nentioned [by the commttee] about where
the noney will conme from He said [the committee] should | ook
at the positive side and use the deficit as an incentive to
engage in further reform neasures and further efficiency
nmeasur es. He said he believes that what the governor outlined
in Plan B ought to be |ooked at seriously, such as the nergers
and consolidations of governnent agencies. He suggested further
exploration of greater efficiencies in the bureaucracy. He
repeated that the deficit my be an opportunity for [the
| egi slature] to look at restructuring the bureaucracy.

Number 3045

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he appreciates Representative
Kohring's conmments, and said he is right 1in that the
| egi slatures of the future could do the planning that s
suggested in HB 493. He said [the bill] will make sure that it

is done and provides direction, "marrying the voluntary
participation concept with the concept that there are things
that we could do even today for greater efficiencies.” He

of fered Representati ve Kohri ng a challenge to form a
subcommittee with hinself and one other menber of the conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG said, "No, on setting up a subconmttee,
and, yes, |I'd be happy to work with you." He said he has been

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -23- February 25, 2004



working on his own to cone up with legislation, but that he
woul d be happy to work with Representative G uenberg. He said
he doesn't think a formal subconmittee is necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "If you'd be willing to be on it,
I'"'m willing to be on it. Let's see if we can get a third
person, and let's do it."

CHAIR HAWKER said he would continue to take [that suggestion]
under advi senent.

Number 3409

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it is interesting to note the
testinmony of this norning in the context of Plan B presented by
[OFfice of Managenent & Budget] to the Conference of Alaskans in
Fai rbanks. He said [Plan B] is a very shocking plan and it cane
about because of a request by the conferees to the

adm ni strati on. It wasn't done to shock people, he said. He
said the amunt of cuts totaled $420 mllion, and it is shocking
to see the inpact on state governnent. He noted that
Representative Kohring has said, in the past, that even nore
cuts should be made. He enphasized that it is frightening to
see the actual cuts. He said that what he has heard this
norning is, even if Plan B is inplemented wth all the
structural increases because of TRS/PERS, inflation and the
other issues, in three years the $400 nmillion in savings would

be burned up. "W're going nowhere. That's how frightening it
is when you look at it," he concl uded.

Nunber 3630

REPRESENTATI VE MOSES said he has enjoyed listening to the wake-
up call. He said he hopes those who canpai gned on "no taxes, no
touching the dividend, just cut the budget,” feel a little
guilty.

Nunber 3737

[HB 493 was hel d over.]
ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the *House

Special Commttee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
9:17 a.m

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 24- February 25, 2004



